Village of Riverwoods
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

In Attendance:
Linda Dunn
Kristine Ford
Larry Kanar
Ron Pankau
David Zehren
William Kaplan
Bruce Huvard
Pat Glenn
Sherry Graditor

Absent:
Joan Becker
David Ritter

Minutes taken by Debbie Limer
The meeting was called to order at 7:30 PM.

Chair Dunn asked for approval to add the Lasky resubdivision to the agenda after
Riverwoods Estates. Commissioner Pankau moved to add the Lasky resubdivision to the
agenda. Commissioner Zehren seconded. Motion was carried by voice vote.

Iv. Approval of Minutes

Plan Commission Meeting — February 3, 2005

Commissioner Ford moved to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner Pankau
seconded the motion. Motion was carried by voice vote.

V. Visitors Wishing to Address the Plan Commission
None

VL Current Matters

A. Continuation of Public Hearing: Regarding the 37 Acres on Milwaukee Avenue
Commissioner Ford moved to open the continued Public Hearing. Commissioner Pankau
seconded. Motion was carried by voice vote. The Public Hearing was called to order at
7:40PM. A roll call was taken.

Atty. Huvard told the commissioners that off site street improvements are still being
worked on by LCDOT and IDOT. The hearing needs to be continued. Commissioner
Pankau moved to continue the Public Hearing. Commissioner Zehren seconded. Motion
was carried by voice vote. The Public Hearing was adjourned at 7:40PM



Village of Riverwoods 2
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

B. Continuation of Public Hearing: Rezoning and Special Use for Riverwoods Inn
Parcel of Five Acres

Commissioner Kanar moved to open the continued Public Hearing. Commissioner Ford
seconded. Motion was carried by voice vote. The Public Hearing was called to order at
7:40PM. A roll call was taken.

George Maurides, representing the owners of the five acres, told the commissioners that
the last time they were here the project was to be a three lot subdivision with BP,
Amcore Bank, and a restaurant. He explained that the owners of the five acres and the
owners of the 37 acres still have not been able to work out all of the issues with LCDOT.
The owners of the 37 acres are not ready to make the necessary improvements. IDOT is
requiring $3.5M worth of improvements. Mr. Maurides reported to the commissioners
that the proposal as it is now is just for the BP Amoco. They have worked on an
agreement for shared access. There are provisions for them to have access to the 37 acres
with an easement. The easement will allow them to have their compensatory storage on
the 37 acres. He explained that after the owners of the 37 acres are ready to make the road
improvements, they will develop the rest of the five acres. Mr. Maurides told the
commissioners that BP is here with a site plan, and hope that it can be approved so that
they can move ahead. He explained that they hope to get the shared access agreement
with the owners of the 37 acres signed in the next two weeks. They would like to get this
small part approved. He stated the BP will go over their plan again.

Walter Hainsfurther, of Kurtz Associates, told the commissioners that he has taken the
project over from one of his associates. The overall plan has not changed. The plan has
the same traffic circulation and positioning. There are some changes in the right of way to
address concerns of the Village, LCDOT, and the owners. He explained that timing is
critical. This has to be done in 2005 or they will risk losing the funding for this project.
They are continuing to work with everyone on the concerns. Manhart met with LCDOT
and got a verbal approval for the proposed improvements. The written letter will be
forthcoming. Mr. Hainsfurther stated they are working on an access easement with the
owners of the 37 acres. It will have benefits for both parties. As it stands now there is no
road all the way across Deerfield Road. The dedications, set backs, and materials are all
the same. He showed the commissioners the brick and shingle samples. The bottom of the
building will use a darker brick than the top. Mr. Hainsfurther explained that they are
setting the standards for the rest of the five acres and, ultimately, the 37 acres. Atty.
Huvard pointed out the commissioners preferred the darker brick. Mr. Hainsfurther
stated it is the same brick as before. Atty. Huvard mentioned that the color rendering and
the proposed samples do not look the same. Mr. Hainsfurther stated everything is exactly
the same. There are limitations as to the color renderings. He reported that the
commissioners had liked the BP Amoco station in Wadsworth. That station is not BP



Village of Riverwoods 3
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

owned and operated. It was developed privately. It cannot be replicated by BP. Atty.
Huvard asked about the architectural shingles. Mr. Hainsfurther pointed out the sample
of the shingles. He added that it can be stipulated in the contract exactly what brick and
shingles will be used. They will refer to the samples, not to the rendering. This BP will be
all brick with a shingled roof. He explained that the car wash will have a flat roof to not
call additional attention to it. It will have a rubber type roof with a brick building.

Mr. Hainsfurther told the commissioners the station will be heavily landscaped. There
have been changes to the landscaping outside of the property line because of the LCDOT
requirements. They will work with the Forester to meet the requirements. There will be
color year round to make it appealing. Mr. Hainsfurther explained that there will be gate
way sign space available to the Village. BP monument signs will be near the entrance. The
monument signs will be made with a brick base. Chair Dunn asked if they could be made
of the darker brick. Mr. Hainsfurther stated that would be fine. He reported that the
monument signs will be 10 feet high. Atty. Huvard asked if the size of the buildings and
the bays would be the same. Mr. Hainsfurther stated they would be. Atty. Huvard asked
about the set backs. Mr. Hainsfurther explained they would be the same. There will be a
22 foot dedication off of Deerfield Road. Commissioner Zehren wanted to know how far
the monument sign would be in from Deerfield Road. Mr. Hainsfurther commented that
he did not know for sure, but he thought about five to seven feet.

Commissioner Pankau asked about retention. Mr. Hainsfurther stated it is planned to be
on lot 2 right now. They are working on an agreement with the owners of the 37 acres for
compensatory storage. Atty. Huvard explained that they have discussed underground
vaults. Mr. Maurides reported that they have two types of storage to address: detention
and compensatory storage. The 37 acres is going to eventually take care of the
compensatory storage. The detention will be handled with underground vaults. If there is
no agreement with the 37 acres for compensatory storage, then all of the storage will be
handled on lot two. Mr. Hainsfurther explained that the underground vaults have a
controlled release rate. The same thing has already been done at the Target in Highland
Park. They are required to meet all the engineering requirements with this type of
solution. Atty. Huvard stated that we try to stay away from turf as a surface. We want
to improve the water quality of the water going to the Des Plaines River.

Commissioner Zehren asked if there will be any left turns allowed to get out of the service
station. Mr. Hainsfurther stated they will only allow a right in, right out for now. Atty.
Huvard explained that the Village wanted to go back to the 100 foot right of way on the
east end of the property. He indicated that is not on the plat. It will make it easier to line
up a traffic light with Federal Life. He questioned what is on the proposal now. Mr.
Maurides stated there is nothing on the proposal now. Atty. Huvard clarified that we
have asked for 100 feet, but we have looked at 80 feet. The easiest way to take this is as a
dedication. It would be for street and utilities. It has been recommended that all access



Village of Riverwoods 4
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

roads become part of the Village’s transportation network. The 80 feet versus 100 feet
will not affect what is built. Pat explained that with 100 feet we would not need to adjust
to line up with Federal Life, and we can add in bike paths. It will give us enough room to
get everything in that we need to be put in. Mr. Maurides stated that he did not want to
lose property just to lose it. Commissioner Pankau reported that we need to know if this
precedent will hold for future developments. Mr. Maurides suggested that they could
take the easement off the table for now to try to get the BP approved. Atty. Huvard
explained that we have two requests right now. One is to amend the Village’s zoning for a
gas station. The second is a special use for a use that requires heightened scrutiny. The
Plan Commission needs to be very sure that they want this use. We do not want to take
everything on good faith. The Village should get something in return for the proposed
changes. It is a trade off. We need to consider all of the trade offs. He added that we have
been working on this planning for a 100 foot right of way. We need to exercise control
within our planning jurisdiction. Atty. Huvard suggested that we could recommend
approval contingent on the right of way.

Commissioner Kanar asked it would be doable, if they gave us 80 feet. Pat told the
commissioners that he suggests it the other way. He wanted to get 100 feet. If everything
fits into the 80 feet, we can vacate. He stated that he had comments in September. There
are key elements to consider. The first one is easements and compensatory storage
agreements. The next is whether or not they can have compensatory storage and
excavation on a land fill site. Atty. Huvard pointed out that the plan shown tonight does
not show compensatory storage on the site. Mr. Hainsfurther questioned if there is
enough room for compensatory storage on the site. Pat stated that there is, but it is not
shown on the plan. We can only consider what is presented. The plan will have to be
submitted to our land fill consultant. We also need written approval from LCDOT and
IDOT approving dedication and right of way. We cannot approve the plan ahead of that.
Commissioner Kanar asked if we could make it contingent on those things. Pat explained
that things need to be done in a certain order. Atty. Huvard explained that the special use
references all of the documentation. If LCDOT or IDOT changes the plan, everything
changes. Pat reported that this is the first time we have seen a plan with only one access.
Mayor Kaplan added we have been waiting since December for an answer from LCDOT.

Mr. Maurides told the commissioners that most communities will let developers proceed
at their own risk and make the changes as LCDOT and IDOT require. Atty. Huvard
stated that we did not want them to use a mountable median. Pat discussed the truck in
and out safety issues. Mr. Hainsfurther reported that the traffic pattern was approved by
BP and their transportation company. He added that the traffic pattern may change after
the entire project is developed. It works for now as it is set up. Atty. Huvard asked about
the surface of the mountable median. Mr. Hainsfurther stated it is concrete with a rumble
strip. Commissioner Pankau wanted to know what Pat’s objections were. He questioned



Village of Riverwoods 5
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

if it was the 80 foot easement versus the 100 foot easement. Commissioner Ford
explained that she felt it was the easement, traffic and water storage issues. Pat responded
that he does not suggest approval without an agreement. The issue of the compensatory
storage needs to be resolved. Either there needs to be an agreement or the storage must be
on their property. There also needs to be agreements from LCDOT and IDOT. Chair
Dunn brought up the landscape plan. That can be worked out by the next meeting.
Commissioner Pankau stated that the issues need to be in front of us before they come
back and we are expected to vote.

Atty. Huvard asked about the dedication. Mr. Maurides explained that they have to have
the compensatory storage first. In order to develop the site, the compensatory storage has
to be off site. The owners of the 37 acres want access to their site. We can’t give the
Village the dedication until we get the compensatory storage agreement. Nothing will
change on the property as it is now. The restaurant will just get replaced with the BP.
Mayor Kaplan explained that the Village will not approve the BP without the dedication.
He added that he would like to see sales tax predictions. Commissioner Ford stated that
the traffic approvals still remain. She asked Pat if he suggests waiting. Pat responded
“yes.” Mr. Maurides reported that he knows they have to get the approvals by LCDOT
and IDOT. Chair Dunn stated that she would like to see letters on the compensatory
storage, engineering approvals, Forester’s approval, LCDOT and IDOT approval, and tax
advantages. She stated the next Plan Commission meeting is April 7. That would put
them before the Board of Trustee on April 19", She suggested that they talk to Atty.
Huvard and Pat Glenn.

Commissioner Pankau explained that conceptually the plan is not a problem, but we need
the approvals. Mr. Maurides asked if there was any way to get this done before the April
7™ meeting. He questioned if there is any way to have a special meeting, if they are able to
get everything in one week. If they cannot get all of the approval for three weeks, they
understand they will have to wait until the 7™ Pat explained that he needs time for
review. Mr. Maurides stated they understand they are not trying to rush ahead. A lot of
people have been working on the agreements with the 37 acres and LCDOT. Chair Dunn
stated she would leave it for Pat and Atty. Huvard to determine when all the approvals
are in. Commissioner Pankau moved to continue the Public Hearing until April 7 or
before. Commissioner Ford seconded. Motion was carried by voice vote.

The Public Hearing adjourned at 8:50PM.
C. Public Hearing: Text Amendment for Hotel Property

Commissioner Kanar moved to open the Public Hearing. Commissioner Ford seconded.
Motion was carried by voice vote. The Public Hearing was called to order at 8:50PM.



Village of Riverwoods 6
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

Atty. Huvard read the public notice for the Public Hearing. This pertains to the vacant lot
next to the hotel. We are considering a text amendment of the zoning ordinance. We would
allow for an office building on the property and repeal the hotel use. In the past we had
approved two hotels with impervious surface restrictions. Atty. Huvard explained that
this proposed office compatible district would be on the outskirts of a large office
campus. The zoning, which is the same as O & R1, is very restrictive. The owners would
like modifications to the office compatible district. They would like a higher FAR. Their
justification for that is the FAR at Morgan Stanley has just gone up. CCH is also
considering an expansion. We would continue with the same ISR and FAR for the hotel
and the office. Atty. Huvard explained that contract issues have come up, so neither
party is here. He suggested that we continue the hearing until the 7. Commissioner
Kanar moved to continue the Public Hearing for a text amendment for the Hotel Property
until April 7. Commissioner Zehren seconded. Motion was carried by voice vote. The
Public Hearing adjourned at 9:00PM.

D. Riverwoods Estates

Chair Dunn brought up the subject of Riverwood Estates. Keith Lacy told the
commissioners he was here to represent the owners. The land is currently two lots that
they want to make into three. The addresses are 720 Ringland Road and 2895

Arrowwood Terrace. The total acreage is 6.78. It is zoned R2 residential. The zoning will
stay as it is. Each of the three lots would be 2 acres or more. Mr. Lacy explained that the
Thorngate Creek runs through the lots. There are two existing homes that would stay as
is. Right now the homes are on private wells. The owner is planning to put in 1700 feet of
water main using directional booring. The owner would then allow all residents who desire
to tap on. The lots are heavily wooded, and the character will remain. Ringland Road will
be repaved after the water lines go in. Mr. Lacy stated the he understands that the flood
plain delineation needs to be done.

Pat stated that the owner has submitted his preliminary plant and engineering
requirements. He explained that he has reviewed them and made comments. He pointed
out the changes. The issues are that SMC has concerns about the base flood elevations,
the wetland consultant has some concerns about the delineations, and there is a concern
about the variance request of frontage. Calin Paunescu, the owner, explained that he wants
to keep the bridge where it is, so to not impact the trees. Henry Hollander of 718
Ringland Road told the board he has been on the Plan Commission. He understood he had
to get notice when the changes were being made. Atty. Huvard explained that there would
be a posted sign of a Zoning Board of Appeals meeting, if the meeting were necessary.
Mr. Hollander asked about an exchange of land. Atty. Huvard stated that something like
that has been done in the past. He questioned Mr. Hollander if he was in favor of keeping
the bridge. Mr. Hollander reported he is in favor of it, if there are no adverse affect for
him and his property. Atty. Huvard indicated we want to preserve whatever we can. We



Village of Riverwoods 7
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

have to find the mechanism to do that. Commissioner Pankau stated we can find a way.
Atty. Huvard told the commissioners that the cul-de-sac that was added is a good
improvement for the area.

Chair Dunn stated the issues are SMC, wetlands, and an agreement between Mr.
Hollander and Mr. Paunescu. Mr. Paunescu reported that the plat can change if the
neighbors do not agree to it. Mr. Hollander indicated that he wants to make it work. He
hopes that the bridge can stay as is. Mr. Paunescu stated his objective is to make three
lots. Atty. Huvard reported that we cannot approve part of the plan. Conceptually, three
lots will not be a problem. Chair Dunn explained that we need the agreement and the
approvals from SMC and our wetland consultant. Pat stated that he needs to meet with
the consultant. We can probably push to get the final. The elevations are critical. Atty.
Huvard reported that the existing lot to the north will lose 20 feet for the cul-de-sac. The
cul-de-sac helps with emergency access. The configuration of the lots looks good. The
plan will be approvable after we solve the few problems. Pat stated the mechanics of the
lot geometry does not look to be a problem.

Commissioner Ford stated she has a letter dated February 2™ from the Forester. She
questioned if there will be replacement trees planted for the ones coming down. Mr.
Paunescu told the board he received a letter with the number of inches coming down. It
equates to $16K. He is trying to get the third house up with minimal impact. Atty.
Huvard stated there will be a tree replacement plan. Mr. Paunescu added they already
have the plan. The trees have been surveyed. Chair Dunn stated this will be the first new
development to fall under the Woodland Tree Protection Ordinance. Commissioner
Pankau indicated this issue falls under the Tree Preservation Ordinance. Atty. Huvard
stated before we look at this again we will get information from Chuck Stewart. We
cannot approve this tonight. It will have to wait until April. Mr. Paunescu questioned if
they are ready before April, if they could be part of the special Plan Commission Meeting
if BP comes in. Chair Dunn stated if they are ready and BP is ready, they can be included
also. Atty. Huvard reminded everyone that there is research that still needs to be done.
Pat added he would get direction as to what the ZBA can do about the bridge. He was not
sure what their authority is on that.

E. Lake Lasky Resubdivision

Mark Lasky of 2340 Woodland told the commissioners he and his wife are here to submit
a resubdivision plan. Betty Lasky explained that they own 2340 Woodland, 2300
Woodland, 2141 Woodland, and 3 Windlake. Atty. Huvard reported that the three lots on
Woodland are in one subdivision, and the one on Windlake is in another. The property on
Windlake is a non-conforming lot. They want to resubdivide them to make the lots bigger.
Ms. Lasky stated that there is a spring fed lake on the side of the property and the non
conforming lot is land locked. She illustrated everything on the plat. Atty. Huvard



Village of Riverwoods 8
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

indicated that taking a non-conforming lot and making it more non-conforming could be an
issue. Ms. Lasky stated that an owner is interested in purchasing lot 3. The owners
behind lot four are interesting in buying that one. Atty. Huvard reported the Plan
Commission will look into it. Commissioner Kanar stated that we need more details. It is
a great idea. The best idea is to sell the back parts to the neighbors.

Chair Dunn told the commissioners that an article about Toni Rey has been published in
the Chicago Tribune. She is writing a book.

Chair Dunn encouraged everyone to get out and vote on April 5.

F. Affordable Housing
Chair Dunn told the commissioners that the Affordable Housing Plan is in from of the
Board of Trustees.

G. Comprehensive Plan
Nothing

VII.  Comments from the Chairperson
Mayor Kaplan told the commissioners he has a request on the Affordable Housing Plan.

The Plan Commission has never made a report to the board. Chair Dunn explained that
the report is the plan submitted by the Plan Commission. Mayor Kaplan explained that a
couple members of the board do not want to deal with it. Mayor Kaplan asked that the
Plan Commission write a formal request to the board to submit the Affordable Housing
Plan.

Mayor Kaplan stated that Linda Dunn is running for Village Trustee and assumes that she
will be elected. He added that he hopes to continue on as Mayor. He has asked Ron
Pankau to be the next Plan Commission chairman. Linda Dunn would be sworn in April
19", Ron Pankau would take over in May. Mayor Kaplan asked the commissioners who
want to remain on the plan commission to submit a letter to him. We have not been
reappointing members. We should be doing it every two to four years, and the terms
should be staggered. He told the members who want to email him his address is
WilliamSKaplan@comecast.net.

Atty. Huvard told the commissioners that he recommends that we approve the
Aftfordable Housing Plan, stay under the radar, and follow the law. Chair Dunn explained
that there were two members who do not want to submit a plan. Commissioner Pankau
moved to have Chair Dunn write a formal request to the Board of Trustee to approve and



Village of Riverwoods
Plan Commission Meeting
March 3, 2005

submit the Affordable Housing Plan. Commissioner Ford seconded. Motion was carried
by voice vote.

VIII. Old Business
None

IX. New Business
None

X. Adjournment

Commissioner Pankau moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Kanar seconded.
Motion was carried by voice vote.

The meeting adjourned at 9:55PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Debbie Limer



Village of Riverwoods 1
Plan Commission Meeting
February 3, 2004

In Attendance:
Linda Dunn
Joan Becker
Kristine Ford
Larry Kanar
Ron Pankau
David Zehren
William Kaplan
Pat Glenn
Sherry Graditor

Absent:
David Ritter

Minutes taken by Debbie Limer

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 PM.
IV.  Approval of Minutes

Plan Commission Meeting — January 13, 2005

Commissioner Pankau moved to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner Becker
seconded the motion. Motion was carried by voice vote.

V. Visitors Wishing to Address the Plan Commission
Roger Simonson of 725 Juneberry told the Commissioners that the property behind his

house, off of Arrowwood, has added very bright lights that are disturbing to him. He
would like to see the lights shielded. It is the new property at the end of Arrowwood. He
added he has not talked to the neighbor about the matter. Michael Ford of 4 Timberwood
stated he has a similar problem with 5 Timberline. The lights on the south end of the
property are in the trees and are very bright. He added they shine into his house and are a
nuisance. Pat Glenn reported that his office has a light meter. He added that he agrees
with Mr. Ford about the brightness of the lights of the property by his home. He will talk
to Chief Weinstein tomorrow about having someone on the night shift learn how to use
the light meter. That way the officer can go out at night and take light meter readings
when the lights are on. Pat stated he has tried to in the past, but it seems that when he is
in the Village after dark the homeowner’s lights are not on. Mr. Ford stated he would call
the Police Department on a night that the lights are on. Pat explained that he had received
a lot of calls about the amount of light that comes from the house with the indoor tennis
court. He went out and measured the light, and it actually measured a zero. He would be
happy to work with the Police Department on this issue.



Village of Riverwoods 2
Plan Commission Meeting
February 3, 2004

Commissioner Ford pointed out that we have regulations on commercial lights. She
questioned residential. Pat stated the regulations related to residential lights are in the
Zoning Ordinance. Mayor Kaplan explained that the lights are put in after a new
construction is completed. Commissioner Becker asked if the village could purchase a
light meter. She questioned if this is a problem we need to monitor. She wanted to know if
this is becoming more frequent with the larger houses in the village. Mayor Kaplan
commented in both situations it is a new resident in an older house. Commissioner Zehren
asked if the current regulations are being followed, and if they are adequate. Mr. Ford
commented that the current regulations should be fine. Mr. Simonson stated this would be
a non-issue for him if his neighbor’s lights pointed down. Marjorie Kaul of 2975
Arrowwood told the commissioners she has the same problem. Pat stated he would call
the owners and ask about their lights.

VL Current Matters

A. Continuation of Public Hearing: regarding the 37 acres on Milwaukee Avenue
Chair Dunn stated we need to open and continue the hearing until March. Commissioner
Ford moved to open the Public Hearing regarding the 37 acres on Milwaukee Avenue and
continue it until March 3™. Commissioner Pankau seconded. Motion was carried by voice
vote.

B. Continuation of Public Hearing: rezoning and special use for the Riverwood Inn
parcel of 5 acres

Commissioner Kanar moved to open the Public Hearing for the rezoning and special use

for the Riverwood Inn parcel of 5 acres and continue it until March 3™, Commissioner

Ford seconded. Motion was carried by voice vote.

Pat explained that we will hear the owners of the 5 acres intent to come in for the
approval for the BP and one access point. They plan to put off the other uses until the 37
acres is farther along. Mayor Kaplan stated Amcore is waiting, and still planning on going
ahead with their plan. The 37 acres have two major users signed on. We hope all of that
will be finalized in the next 45 to 90 days.

C. Affordable Housing
Chair Dunn stated the Affordable Housing Draft is now in the hands of the Board of
Trustees. They will need to proceed as fast as possible for the April deadline.

D. Comprehensive Plan
Chair Dunn told the Commissioners that the Board of Trustee will be looking at the
Comprehensive Plan.

E. Riverwoods Estates




